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1                 PROCEEDINGS
2          MR. SPITZ:  Good evening,
3     everybody.  We are going to get
4     started for the December 18, town of
5     Highland planning board meeting at
6     6:00 p.m.
7          Can I get a motion to open up the
8     meeting?  Dave.  JT second.  All in
9     favor?
10          PARTICIPANTS:  Aye.
11          MR. SPITZ:  Opposed?  Abstained.
12          I would like everybody to note
13     that the meeting is being recorded in
14     a couple of different ways.  We have a
15     stenographer tonight.  We are
16     recording as well the audio.  We are
17     on Zoom, which is not being recorded,
18     but view only for people who are
19     watching via Zoom.
20          If we can stand for the Pledge of
21     Allegiance.  The flag is on the stage.
22          (The Pledge of Allegiance.)
23          MR. SPITZ:  Helene, can you call
24     attendance, please.
25          MS. HOFFMAN:  Jeffrey Spitz.
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1                 PROCEEDINGS
2          MR. SPITZ:  Here.
3          MS. HOFFMAN:  Frank Monteleone.
4          MR. MONTELEONE:  Here.
5          MS. HOFFMAN:  JT Vogt.
6          MR. VOGT:  Here.
7          MS. HOFFMAN:  Tim McKenna.
8          MR. MCKENNA:  Here.
9          MS. HOFFMAN:  Dave Pietkiewicz.
10          MR. PIETKIEWICZ:  Here.
11          MS. HOFFMAN:  Ted Knuetter.
12          MR. KNUETTER:  Here.
13          MS. HOFFMAN:  Andrew Valenti.
14          MR. VALENTI:  Here.
15          MS. HOFFMAN:  I'm here.
16          And the town attorney --
17          MR. SPITZ:  He might be on Zoom,
18     monitoring.
19          MS. HOFFMAN:  Not yet.  And the
20     town engineer is absent.
21          MR. SPITZ:  Regarding the
22     November 30th planning board meeting
23     minutes, any comments to those
24     meetings?  Hearing none, can I get
25     motion to accept the November 30,
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1                 PROCEEDINGS
2     planning board minutes?
3          MR. McKENNA:  Second.
4          MR. MONTELEONE:  Second.
5          MR. SPITZ:  Frank, second.  All
6     in favor?
7          PARTICIPANTS:  Aye.
8          MR. SPITZ:  Opposed?  Are there
9     any general correspondence?
10          MS. HOFFMAN:  No.
11          MR. SPITZ:  I'm going to open up
12     the meeting by thanking all of you for
13     coming out to tonight's meeting.  We
14     definitely appreciate your input, your
15     thoughts, your feelings on this
16     project.  It truly is invaluable to
17     this process and to us, the planning
18     board, we greatly appreciate it.  As
19     we start the public hearing for Fimfo,
20     a couple of points.
21          Everyone has their own feelings
22     about this project, some are the same,
23     some different.  Regardless, everybody
24     is to respect one another and allow
25     them the opportunity to voice their
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1                 PROCEEDINGS
2     thoughts.  So there will be no
3     interrupting, no outbursts, no
4     yelling, no comments, no side
5     conversations or any kind of
6     disruption, that includes applause or
7     boos after a person is talking.
8     Anyone being disruptive will asked to
9     be removed, or will be removed from
10     this meeting.  There was a sign-up
11     sheet as you walked for those wanting
12     to speak, so if you do want to speak
13     and have not signed-in, please go do
14     so now.
15          Tonight's meeting will go to
16     8:00 p.m. and if there are still
17     people on the list to talk, the public
18     hearing will continue to the January
19     22nd meeting.  Everybody is encouraged
20     to send written comments and questions
21     to the
22     planningboardzba@townofhighlandny.com.
23     You currently have until January 10th
24     to submit, unless a public hearing
25     does go into January, in which case it
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2     will be extended to submit to February
3     5th.  The public hearing, if not
4     closed tonight, will be closed at the
5     end of the January meeting.  Each
6     person will get a one-time of up to
7     three minutes to comment.  There is a
8     countdown clock.  This it your time to
9     share what you want and you will not
10     be interrupted, unless you are
11     verbally attacking, threatening,
12     creating a hostile or aggressive tone,
13     or if it's unrelated to this
14     application.  You are to direct your
15     comments only to the planning board.
16     There will be no discussion tonight.
17     There is no answering of questions or
18     feedback from the planning board,
19     Fimfo or others.  The comments,
20     questions will be gathered.  Tonight's
21     meeting has a stenographer and is
22     being recorded.  A transcript will be
23     created.  So you know, Fimfo then has
24     a responsibility for answering in
25     writing in it their official response.
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2     Responses and answers will only be
3     related to what is already in the
4     environmental impact study.  No new
5     concerns or questions outside the
6     environmental impact study will be
7     addressed.  There is no decision
8     tonight.  The process continues.  Once
9     the public comment period is over,
10     applicants gather the questions and
11     comments and prepares a final
12     environmental impact study.  The
13     planning board will prepare a notice
14     of completion, publish it, and
15     publicly post it.  Each agency
16     involved, which includes UDC and NPS,
17     prepares a written SEQR statement
18     within 30 days.  The documents are
19     reviewed, and the planning board
20     renders its decision.  So we are still
21     a bit away from any decision or
22     actions that are being taken.
23          With that being said, we have a
24     public hearing tonight for application
25     5-2022 Camp Fimfo represented by Fimfo
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1                 PROCEEDINGS
2     members and Daniel Rubin and we will
3     open up the public hearing.
4          MR. McKENNA:  So moved.
5          Tim makes a motion to open up the
6     public hearing.  Second?
7          MR. VOGT:  Second.
8          MR. SPITZ:  JT second.  All in
9     favor?
10          PARTICIPANTS:  Aye.
11          MR. SPITZ:  Opposed?  The public
12     hearing is open.  As your name is
13     called, please come up to the podium,
14     speak clear and loudly.  We do have a
15     stenographer.  If you spell your last
16     name so she gets it on official record
17     and the first one is Greg Lotorto.
18          MR. LOTORTO:  Greg Lotorto.  I
19     think you spelled it for me so I don't
20     know if I have to do it again.  I am a
21     resident of Pike County, Pennsylvania,
22     part of the river system.  I lived in
23     Pike County since 1987.  I can talk a
24     little louder.  Can you hear me now?
25     I've lived in Pike County since 1987
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2     and I worked in the area.  I'm a
3     landscape architect who's worked on
4     commercial sites.  Before retiring I
5     was the grounds superintendent at
6     Bethel Woods.  I retired in 2018 bit I
7     worked quite a few large venues and
8     commercial sites.  In looking at this
9     review, there is a lot of missing
10     pieces.  And I understand how these
11     system works so the final plans need
12     to be worked on.  And some of the
13     things that I worry about is I love
14     this river.  I've been on this river
15     many times.  The former owners of the
16     camp site were great custodians of the
17     river.  They annually had river
18     cleanups, which I myself have
19     participated in, so I know what the
20     river is like, both canoeing it,
21     fishing it, hiking around it, and
22     cleaning if up.  Some of the things
23     that I read about in the environmental
24     impact statement don't really address
25     the full impact of the environment.
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2     Understand that this site is in the
3     flood plain.  A river that flows down
4     hill and it affects everyone, all the
5     way to the ocean.  I'm worried about
6     the project being in the flood plain.
7     Number one, the soils are not
8     conducive to drainage.  They talk
9     about permanent structures on there,
10     adding fill, I don't really see an in
11     depth mitigation program for the
12     water, both waste water and the flood
13     water.  You know, we live in an area
14     that used to have hundred year storms
15     every hundred years.  Those
16     meteorological things are thrown out
17     the window.  We have hundred year
18     storms every ten years.  And the ones
19     in between are tragic.  I don't see a
20     really realistic plan on how to
21     control the debris and everything
22     that's going to come off the site in a
23     moderate flood, never mind the major
24     floods that we see.  So I ask the
25     town, because you guys --
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2          (Timer.)
3          MR. SPITZ:  Thank so much for
4     your time.  We appreciate that.
5     Again, everyone is more than welcome
6     to submit their comments, questions to
7     the planning board via e-mail, to the
8     townofhighlandny.com, or if you do
9     have your comments written tonight,
10     you can submit it.
11          The next person is Mark Baez,
12     B-A-E-Z.
13          MR. BAEZ:  Good afternoon,
14     Chairman Spitz and members of the
15     board.  Thank you for this public
16     hearing.  My name is Mark Baez, I'm
17     president, CEO of Sullivan County
18     Partnership.  It's already on record
19     that the partnership supports this
20     project.  We have been working with
21     the applicant throughout this process.
22     I just want to make some comments
23     generally speaking about economic
24     development in Sullivan County, about
25     the process and the length of the
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2     process and how it's going.  I think
3     we are approaching three years in
4     assessing this project, assessing the
5     approvals and the applicant providing
6     the board information and the board
7     asking for more information.  The DEIS
8     and a whole host of different things
9     and a whole host of different agencies
10     that are reviewing this project.  I've
11     been practicing economic development
12     in Sullivan County since 2017.  I can
13     tell you, this is not meant to be a
14     disparaging remark, it's just a
15     thoroughness the board is taking, this
16     is the longest project in terms of
17     approval process that we've dealt with
18     in Sullivan County.  And I'm talking
19     about the casino, Kartrite Hotel,
20     (inaudible) all sorts of different
21     projects, so it speaks to me that you
22     are thorough and that you've asked for
23     a whole host of different things and
24     the length of the process is something
25     that's important to this community and
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2     the protection of the river.  And so
3     as they've provided that information,
4     as transparent as they've been and
5     they will talk about other things
6     (inaudible) our position is that you
7     have been thorough, that the process
8     has been lengthy, that the DEIS should
9     be completely after this public
10     hearing because they have done the
11     things you've asked them to do and in
12     fact eliminated certain things in the
13     project that you didn't want
14     (inaudible) the informational session
15     two and a half summers ago.  We were
16     there.  We brought the applicant in.
17     The community came.  They presented
18     and answered questions along with all
19     the meetings and public hearings
20     you've had.  Putting into context
21     here, the Tappanzee Bridge was built
22     in less time, which tells me that you
23     are looking at this and at the end of
24     that process I'm confident that you'll
25     see the applicant is going to do the
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2     things the way you asked them to and
3     they'll be here for another 80 years
4     as a campground and they'll be a proud
5     member of this community (inaudible).
6     We are hoping the EIS is complete and
7     you deem that the site plan as
8     submitted is somethings that meets
9     your approval.  Thank you for having
10     (inaudible).
11          MR. SPITZ:  Ashley Leavitt.
12          MS. LEAVITT:  Hi, everybody.  My
13     name is Ashley Leavitt, L-E-A-V-I-T-T.
14     I am the president and CEO of the
15     Sullivan County Chamber of Commence.
16     I am here to support Fimfo on behalf
17     of the Chamber of Commerce and as
18     board of directors.  The upgraded
19     campground will unfoundedly attract
20     more visitors driving income and
21     revenue for local business.
22     Restaurants, shops and other
23     establishments will benefit from the
24     influx of campers and outdoor
25     enthusiasts.  Additionally, this
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2     project can create job opportunities
3     for construction during the upgrade
4     process to staffing and maintenance
5     roles once the campground is
6     operational.  We have supported -- we
7     have submitted a letter for approval
8     so in the essence of time I'm not
9     going to go through the whole thing
10     but once again, Sullivan Chamber of
11     Commerce, and we support this project.
12     Thank you.
13          MR. SPITZ:  Jennifer Cassaro.
14          MS. CASSARO:  So my is name
15     Jennifer Gray Cassaro.  I am born and
16     raised in Port Jervis.  I've grow up
17     on the river my entire life.  I am now
18     a Town of Forestburgh resident for 20
19     years.  I am also a landowner along
20     the Delaware in Milford, Pennsylvania.
21     I'm writing to express my enthusiastic
22     support for the Camp Fimfo project,
23     urging you to move forward in
24     approving their EIS application after
25     almost three years.  This project, I

Page 15

Veritext Legal Solutions
212-279-9424 www.veritext.com 212-490-3430



1                 PROCEEDINGS
2     believe, holds great potential to
3     benefit our community in numerous ways
4     and I believe it's a valuable and best
5     (inaudible)  in the sake of time I
6     have written a letter which I would
7     like to submit tonight.  Thank you
8     very much.
9          MR. SPITZ:  Thank you so much.
10          Rocco.
11          MR. BALDUASSARI:  Rocco,
12     B-A-L-D-U-A-S-S-A-R-I. Good afternoon,
13     board.  We've been working together
14     over three and a half years now.  We
15     obviously appreciate all the hard work
16     and the time and effort you guys have
17     been putting into this project.  I
18     want to say that myself, Rocco
19     Balduassari, I've been with
20     Kittatinny, I've been with North Gate
21     and Kittatinny since we purchased the
22     property from the Jones family going
23     back to early 2021.  I would like to
24     say that we've been part of this
25     community, part of making communities
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2     along the Delaware, including Pike
3     County and Milford, Pennsylvania and
4     Barryville as well.  We've been good
5     neighbors to our immediate neighbors
6     and to the public.  We've been a part
7     of the community, not just the four
8     years North Gates has had the
9     property, but going back to almost 80
10     years of Kittatinny's legacy
11     (inaudible).  This campground, you
12     know, is a are life blood to this
13     town, this campground is life blood to
14     the community as in job, careers,
15     people being able to enjoy the river,
16     go on the river, rafting, canoeing,
17     kayaking, camping with us.  With these
18     upgrades to our current campground,
19     it's not a new campground, we are
20     doing upgrades to it, to improve the
21     quality of the experience for our
22     guests that come to this county.  It's
23     a much needed upgrade.  I've been
24     here, like I said for four years.
25     This campground is in need for this
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2     upgrade based on guest experience, we
3     hear back from the public, and it's my
4     experience as GM that I think this
5     property is in well dire need of
6     updates.  Environment.  We are
7     stewards of this river.  This goes
8     back to previous ownership.  We've
9     taken that torch.  We continue the
10     rive cleanup.  We do it every single
11     season.  500 tons of trash removed
12     from this river going back to 1980.
13     Almost 10,000 tires have been removed
14     from this river by Kittatinny and our
15     volunteers.  We've gotten almost ten
16     thousand pounds of cans removed from
17     this rive from the Kittatinny river
18     cleanup.  That will continue for years
19     to come beyond this project.  That's
20     something that we've committed to Ruth
21     Jones, we've committed to the Delaware
22     River and it's just something we take
23     very personal and something this area
24     needs.  And I would not, as a business
25     owner of the past and GM of this
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2     property, stand behind anything that
3     does not take care of the environment.
4     The environment come first.  This
5     project, we've submitted detailed
6     minutes to the board, the board has
7     reviewed them, we have done everything
8     in our power, everything possible to
9     make sure whatever we do to this piece
10     of property, this land along the
11     Delaware, is done right, safe for the
12     river, safe for the community, and
13     will continue to be friendly
14     neighbors, good neighbors, responsible
15     neighbors and responsible I mean
16     taking care of the environment.  Thank
17     you.
18          MR. SPITZ:  Vanessa McPhillips.
19          MS. MCPHILLIPS:  Good evening,
20     Board.  My name is Vanessa McPhillips.
21     I am VP of operations and strategy at
22     the Sullivan County Partnership for
23     Economic Development.  I echo many of
24     the comments said by Mark Baez, our
25     president and CEO.  The board has been
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2     very thorough with this review and I
3     want to support the DEIS as being
4     complete.  And just a few notes that
5     within this proposed project, it's
6     anticipated to reduce the overall
7     maximum occupancy of the campground by
8     approximately 17 percent.  I know a
9     lot of the concerns have been about
10     traffic and the amount of waste water
11     and the folks that would be here.  By
12     reducing that capacity will on its own
13     have significance in term of
14     minimizing those impacts on the
15     environment itself.  The proposed
16     project will include the property's
17     aging infrastructure, which is very
18     key given its location along the
19     river.  That is upgrading its water
20     waste, waste water collection and
21     treatment facility and in addition to
22     adding storm water mitigation, which
23     currently does not exist on this
24     property, so that is very important as
25     well.  And I will be, in addition,
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2     submitting a letter in support.  Thank
3     you.
4          MR. SPITZ:  Chris McCracken.
5          MR. MCCRACKEN:  Good evening.
6     Thank you to the board for the
7     opportunity to speak tonight.  My name
8     is Chris McCracken.  I'm here
9     representing Advance Testing Company.
10     We are a Hudson Valley based firm
11     providing services in and around the
12     Hudson Valley, specifically Hudson
13     Valley for much of our 40-year long
14     history.  We have a longstanding
15     involvement in the local community, in
16     partnership with the chamber, working
17     with Monticello High School and other
18     organizations for many years.  I'm
19     here to speak in support of the plan
20     enhancements and upgrades to the
21     Kittatinny facility.  Over the past
22     decade we have witnessed many positive
23     outcomes and revitalization that
24     tourism-related facilities can bring
25     to the region.  With an existing an
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2     still growing cluster of attractions
3     bringing local residents and distant
4     visitors to the county to experience
5     all that it has to offer.  Many of
6     these have been set up as short term
7     (inaudible) allowing visitors to come
8     spend multiple days in the area and
9     gain access and enjoy a variety of
10     different attractions in and round
11     Sullivan County from Bethel Woods, the
12     Kartrite resorts, Rosco the trout
13     capital of the world, the Sullivan
14     Craft Beverage Trail, and then in
15     general the outdoors and all that
16     Kittatinny has to offer.  We believe
17     that the proposed investment by North
18     Gate will provide needed, high quality
19     improvements to the existing facility
20     and raise the quality of experience
21     for future guests, encouraging repeat
22     new visitors to experience the resort
23     and while visiting come to find many
24     other enjoyable experiences around
25     Sullivan County.  Personally this is
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2     the type of facility I'd like to bring
3     my kids to.  I want to get them
4     outside.  I want them to enjoy hiking
5     and kayaking and canoeing and enjoy
6     the outdoors.  Get out and do
7     something besides sit in front of the
8     TV and play video games.  A facility
9     like this will encourage that for
10     multiple (inaudible) throughout the
11     region.  We encourage the board to
12     finalized review of the EIS towards
13     ultimately accepting it and hopefully
14     towards eventual approval of the
15     project as a whole.  Thank you for the
16     opportunity to speak.
17          MR. SPITZ:  Chelsea Hornichek.
18          MR. HORNICHEK:  Good evening,
19     everyone.  Thank you for having me.
20     My name is Chelsea Hornichek and I am
21     here as a member of the board of
22     Sullivan County Partnership for
23     Economic Development.  I'm also here
24     as a holder of B.S. in biology and
25     environmental science.  I've completed
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2     environmental reviews at both state
3     and the federal levels.  For ten plus
4     years I've worked with the housing --
5     department of housing and urban
6     development.  I've worked in the most
7     impoverished areas of our country.
8     But most importantly, I'm born and
9     raised in Sullivan County I'm a
10     current homeowner and full time
11     resident of Sullivan County, that is
12     through remote work outside of our
13     fair county.  I'm an elected official
14     for the Horton Hill Fire District so I
15     understand the impact of tax levy on
16     the local community.  I'm a lifelong
17     recreational user of the river,
18     swimming, canoeing, even snorkeling,
19     tubing, and I did my internship with
20     the Upper Delaware Recreational and
21     National Park Service.  I also have my
22     master's in public administration so I
23     think I can understand a couple of my
24     talking points.  I dedicated my lie to
25     public service, and most importantly
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2     service to my community which is
3     Sullivan County.  I've seen first hand
4     the struggles and tradeoffs for small
5     rural municipalities, but also more
6     specifically here at home.  I am in
7     favor of this (inaudible).  We have
8     significant challenges here as a
9     community economically and
10     environmentally.  Education, public
11     health, public safety, local
12     infrastructure and pay are all
13     directly funded by taxes, whether you
14     like it or not.  County taxes are
15     raised on sales tax.  They provide
16     vital infrastructure improvements for
17     the entire county and broader public
18     and locally -- local property taxes
19     support our municipalities.
20     Appropriately placed businesses
21     provide more opportunity for sales tax
22     revenue and property taxes (inaudible)
23     without which within the township
24     taxes fall solely to the already
25     burdened local residents.  Without
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2     them, at the county level we have less
3     sales tax, we have less (inaudible)
4     Kittatinny has existed for over 80
5     years providing a tax rateable
6     (inaudible) and Camp Fimfo will
7     continue to do the same with that
8     added benefit of improved
9     infrastructure including sewer and
10     storm water, community enrichment and
11     (inaudible).  It is well and
12     appropriately placed.  It is a site
13     improvement and it provides
14     promotional impact for the entire
15     county.  Thank you.
16          MR. SPITZ:  Maya Van Rossum.
17          MS. VAN ROSSUM:  Good afternoon.
18     My name is Maya Van Rossum.  I'm
19     speaking here as a person with
20     property in the Town of Highland that
21     I enjoy with my family throughout the
22     year along with enjoying the beautiful
23     Delaware River.  I'm also the Delaware
24     River Keeper, I'm leader of the
25     Delaware River Keeper Network and I'm
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2     founder of the National Green
3     Amendments for the Generations
4     movement responsible for New Yorkers
5     now having a constitutional right to
6     clean water and air and healthful
7     environment which US government
8     officials are constitutional obliged
9     to respect and protect.  The Delaware
10     River is an essential part of our
11     community bringing clean water,
12     healthy wildlife, beauty, joy,
13     business and prosperity.  The current
14     campground dominated by natural areas
15     and primarily serving tent camping
16     suits the character of the Town of
17     Highland, offers essential protection
18     to our scenic and recreational river
19     coordinates.  North Gate wants to
20     transform our beautiful riverfront
21     into an RV industrial park dominated
22     by permanent RVs, parking lots,
23     buildings, pools, septic systems,
24     fossil fuels and other infrastructure.
25     And all this damage is so that North
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2     Gate can generate more profits for
3     itself at the expense of our rive and
4     community.  The proposed Camp Fimfo RV
5     industrial park will cover and compact
6     the currently well draining soils of
7     the site, transforming rain fall from
8     (inaudible) infiltrating water
9     resource into polluted run off rushing
10     off the landscape.  When flooding
11     happens, the came Fimfo RVs, fencing,
12     pool chemicals and structures,
13     buildings, septics, power and fossil
14     fuel infrastructure can wash into the
15     river causing serious harm to the
16     river itself and all those that live
17     downstream.  Camp Fimfo's removal of
18     over 14 acres of trees, including
19     canopy and root systems will inflict
20     significant ecologically harm.  The
21     addition of propane storage, piping
22     and use with unanalyzed and
23     undisclosed danger including air
24     pollution, climate change emissions,
25     visual impacts and hazards of

Page 28

Veritext Legal Solutions
212-279-9424 www.veritext.com 212-490-3430



1                 PROCEEDINGS
2     catastrophic incidents, accidents and
3     explosions brings additional adverse
4     environmental impacts and community
5     dangers.  If you approve this project
6     you will be setting president for more
7     damaging projects of this kind that
8     come to our river region and
9     communities setting the stage to
10     transform our entire Upper Delaware
11     River corridor into an industrial RV
12     landscape taking this beautiful
13     stretch of healthy river from present
14     and future generations.  And everyone
15     will know that it all began here, here
16     in the Town of Highland.  Or you can
17     fulfil your legal and constitutional
18     obligation to protect our river and
19     community by saying no to Camp Fimfo,
20     supporting a legacy of environmental
21     beauty and protection for all the
22     generations to come.  Thank you.
23          MR. SPITZ:  Another Van Rossum.
24     I'm not sure if it's Annette or --
25          MS. VAN ROSSUM:  Anneke Van
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2     Rossum.  A-N-N-E-K-E, V-A-N
3     R-O-S-S-U-M.  I own property in
4     Highland but I am also an avid hiker
5     and kayaker in the part of the Upper
6     Delaware River corridor and have been
7     for a long time.  Reading the DEIS, I
8     couldn't help but notice the
9     continuous use of words like upgrade
10     and improvement.  How do you upgrade
11     and improve a place so special, so
12     unique and so natural that it received
13     federal recognition for these
14     qualities?  And if North Gate was
15     honest about one thing in the DEIS, it
16     was saying that, quote, the Upper
17     Delaware River dominates the scenery,
18     and that's exactly how it should stay.
19     So in what world do you consider
20     adding over 956-plus parking spots, a
21     30-foot tall aquatic play structure
22     and 280-plus RV cabins an improvement
23     and upgrade to one of the most natural
24     places left in this county.  You
25     can't.  You can only take it away from
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2     people, which is exactly what Camp
3     Fimfo will do.  Camping remain on of
4     the most affordable ways for people to
5     vacation.  A riverfront basic tent
6     site at Camp Kittatinny for two adults
7     and two children for three days during
8     peak season costs $333.  When we
9     looked at Camp Fimfo in Texas for the
10     same number of people, the same peak
11     season, the lodging costs upwards of
12     $2,000.  And that's a six-fold
13     increase in cost.  Camp Fimfo further
14     limits affordability for its plan to
15     slash the current 342 tent sites at
16     Kittatinny down to about 37 tent sites
17     leaving people with even less options.
18     You are taking away pristine nature
19     and vacation spots from the people who
20     know this area is affordable and one
21     of the few places they are able to go
22     consistently.  When I kayak down the
23     Delaware River, I'm not only taken by
24     the beauty of the nature, but by the
25     variety of people who you able to come
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2     enjoy this area.  I see people of
3     every background and all different
4     generations mingling at the riverside.
5     I hear conversations and music of
6     every kind when I go down, and I smell
7     all the different delicacies of people
8     cooking outside underneath the
9     evergreens.  Camp Fimfo will out price
10     people from continuing to enjoy this
11     area, and those who have yet to enjoy
12     it.  North Gate knows it and they know
13     exactly who they are ou out pricing
14     and that in itself is totally
15     misaligned with the character and
16     culture of this area to be diverse and
17     inclusive.  North Gate can certainly
18     throw around phrases like constructing
19     buildings to dominate the rust
20     architectural vernacular of the area,
21     coupled with attractive landscaping.
22     But this area is not defined by that.
23     It's defined by the fact that people
24     from all walks of life and all
25     socioeconomic status and come close
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2     and be close to nature and enjoy it in
3     its purest form.  There is no earth
4     toned pallet that can replace that.
5     Camp Fimfo is 100 percent misaligned
6     with the character of this community,
7     to the culture and the planning board
8     should say no to Camp Fimfo.  Thank
9     you.
10          MR. SPITZ:  Chere Crist.
11          MS. CRIST:  Chere Crist.
12     Although I've only lived here for five
13     years, I've lived in Pike County for
14     25 years and I spent my first 25 years
15     in the Susquehanna Valley so I know
16     about rivers.  And as far as Fimfo
17     goes, they bought a piece of property
18     and intended to just shove something
19     down the throats of everybody who
20     lives here.  They don't care what is
21     here, they don't care what the
22     neighborhood is like, they just want
23     to do what they want to do.  They told
24     us a different story every time they
25     come and I don't trust them anymore.

Page 33

Veritext Legal Solutions
212-279-9424 www.veritext.com 212-490-3430



1                 PROCEEDINGS
2     They offer no benefit to the
3     neighborhood.  We won't get any tax
4     money from them.  And we would be
5     fools if we expect the clientele to
6     shop at local stores or other local
7     business.  Now, let me just get a few
8     major point.  You want to put in a big
9     tower, a pool and mobile homes.  You
10     call them RVs but they are not.  They
11     are mobile homes that look a little
12     nicer than the standard ones and many
13     are permanent structures.  You know
14     what the answer would be in you asked
15     to put in a mobile home park.  It
16     would be loud no.  You want to have
17     over 200 spots.  They are not going to
18     be taken away in the wintertime to be
19     stored somewhere else like normal RVs.
20     They will stay here year round,
21     unattended and unused.  And that is if
22     everything goes well.  If it does not
23     go well, they can always walk away and
24     leave us with a destroyed property.
25     If the river floods in the winter, who
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2     will be there to watch the property.
3     Rivers don't just flood in the
4     summertime when everybody is nearby.
5     No one will be here to correct the
6     damage (inaudible) on any kind of
7     timely manner.  They can just walk
8     away.  I've seen damage mobile homes
9     can do during a flood.  They float
10     down the river into the bases of
11     bridges.  The damage that they do is
12     not just local.  It can go on for
13     miles and they can just walk away.
14     Any damage to the property will take
15     years to correct and damage to the
16     environment may be permanent.
17          MR. SPITZ:  Janine Schmeiser.
18          MS. SCHMEISER:  My name is Janine
19     Schmeiser and I am the new workforce
20     development director at SUNY Sullivan
21     and I just came tonight to voice my
22     support for Fimfo and say that, you
23     know, we have students that are in our
24     culinary program and our tourism
25     program and this is nothing but a
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2     great benefit for them.  A learning
3     opportunity, a place to find a job so
4     that people can stay in the community,
5     work in the community and play in the
6     community.  And I just wanted to add
7     my voice in support.
8          MR. SPITZ:  Thank you.  George
9     Billard.
10          MR. BILLARD:  Thank you to the
11     board for the hearing.  I know there's
12     a lot of people here tonight from the
13     Town of Highland and a lot of people
14     not from the town.  They are all here
15     to express their interest.  If would
16     be great if in future meetings people
17     would not only identify where they are
18     from but if they are affiliated with
19     North Gate or will financially benefit
20     from this project.  I see a lot of
21     signs here are professionally printed,
22     as is their right for people who
23     champion the casino as our salvation
24     to tell us what is best for our town
25     and people who love here.  So let's
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2     talk about the draft environmental
3     impact statement, the only thing that
4     matters tonight.  The invest just
5     invoice T at no time element /HRAPB
6     million toxic land fill directly
7     adjacent to the site, sheds water.
8     The draft environmental statement
9     makes no mention how leaching from
10     that site will flow through that site
11     once the site is disturbed with new
12     construction.  That's a major flaw.
13     As has been mentioned, there's hundred
14     years storms happening every couple of
15     years now.  So what happens to that
16     runoff?  It's not just debris from the
17     trailers, it's actually toxic
18     chemicals that this county has not
19     addressed dealing with.  Nor has any
20     of the organizations that are here
21     promoting this site.  I'm hoping you
22     take in into consideration.  Camp
23     Fimfo will have to address how that
24     will be dealt with.  That's it.  Thank
25     you.
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2          MR. SPITZ:  Nona Hall.
3          MS. HALL:  Hi.  My name is Nona
4     Hall.  I'm a small business owner in
5     one of the businesses in the Town of
6     Highland.  I just want to say
7     something small and addressing to our
8     dear planning board.  Just please be
9     careful when you are making this
10     decision as many of us already
11     expressed our opinion before, that the
12     big operation like this is not going
13     to benefit our little town.  As we
14     know, the taxes are going to be
15     completely exempt from the town.  The
16     job opportunities is a very big laugh
17     because it's not addressed to small
18     communities to hire people.  They
19     bringing their own.  I don't see any
20     benefit for this community including
21     as somebody already mentioned, we
22     don't see how that clientele going to
23     participate in our small business and
24     as a matter of fact, I don't know how
25     students of SUNY Sullivan can get job.
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2     I think it's not actually right
3     because the jobs is not going to be
4     provided for small community.  And big
5     environment fact that was already
6     mentioned by many special.  Just
7     please just consider our small town
8     opinion instead of people coming with
9     information just received by big
10     corporation a couple of days ago and
11     they supporting this project.  We
12     going through this all the time.  We
13     moved from city from different towns
14     just to admire this river, to enjoy
15     our nature, to protect our animals and
16     all environment that we actually
17     enjoy.  We doing as small businesses
18     we doing everything to keep it
19     attractive for people that come and
20     enjoy it.  I'm sorry.  I'm nervous.
21     But thank you.
22          MR. SPITZ:  Shildorf.
23          MR. SHILDORF:  Good evening.  My
24     name is Dr. Erik Shildorf.  I'm a
25     resident of Pennsylvania, across the
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2     river, and I maintain deep connections
3     to the Upper Delaware River, including
4     here in the Town of Highland.  I am a
5     Ph.D. stream and river ecologist and
6     I've conducted extensive research on
7     the Delaware River since 1992
8     investigating the effects of New York
9     City reservoirs on river ecosystems
10     and (inaudible) as well as detailed
11     examinations of both the main stems
12     and tributary water quality in
13     (inaudible) but my background and
14     expertise I've conducted Upper
15     Delaware bio surveys, categorizing the
16     extraordinary biodiversity of this
17     region and I'm also active in working
18     with the National Park Service on
19     safety patrols along the river.
20     Ensuring the residents and visitors
21     alike enjoy the river and then return
22     home safely each night.  And I have
23     spent my own time and my own money on
24     camping and lodging and livery
25     services in and around the Town of
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2     Highland.  Tonight I'm here to testify
3     that the Camp Fimfo proposal fails to
4     comply with the Town of Highland's
5     requirements and that Camp Fimfo
6     proposal fails to protect the
7     environmental resources of the site
8     and the region.  In addition, I want
9     to emphasize that such a massive,
10     large scale (inaudible) impact my own
11     experience and the Upper Delaware
12     River.  The planning board must not
13     accept the DEIS and must deny approval
14     of the outrageous plan and protect the
15     Town of Highland from this impending
16     threat.  I think the greatest
17     environmental failure will be the
18     impact of water resources by
19     converting temporary camp sites to
20     semi-permanent structures, as well as
21     other improvements, the increase in
22     impervious structures of nearly 7
23     acres with cause sediments and
24     pollution to leak into the Delaware
25     River.  And the applicant proposes
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2     inadequate mediation.  Increase in
3     waste water disposal, shallow ground
4     water (inaudible) 30,000 gallons per
5     day causing irreparable impact to
6     ground water and surface water
7     resources and will negatively affect
8     aquatic life (inaudible) so critical
9     on the pristine conditions we know and
10     experience today.  But the impacts are
11     far reaching.  Impact to traffic,
12     impacts to safety, impacts to noise
13     levels, nearly 15 acres of tree
14     removal, increases in parking and
15     (inaudible) along the river.
16     Permanent (inaudible) structure within
17     the flood plain.  And let me highlight
18     a fundamental error by the applicant
19     (inaudible) I know that because I have
20     camped at the former Kittatinny camp
21     site.  This is not currently operating
22     as an RV campground.  This contention
23     by the applicant is preposterous.
24     With 300 tent sites nearly all of
25     which will be lost.  Everywhere we
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2     look there are failures by the
3     applicant.  Failure to actually
4     represent the full environmental
5     impact, failure to comply with the
6     Town of Highland requirements, failure
7     to comply with the National Park
8     Service river management plan.  In
9     total a proposed failure to protect
10     the Town of Highland, failure to
11     protect both residents and visitors
12     and failure to protect a sensitive
13     environment.  The planning board must
14     deny this --
15          (Timer).
16          MR. SPITZ:  Thank you.  Jesse J.
17     Robinson, II.
18          MR. ROBINSON:  Good evening.  My
19     name is Jesse Robinson, II.  I am the
20     newly elected board of director of
21     Sullivan Chamber of Commerce.  I want
22     to take the time to come up here and
23     thank the board and introduce myself.
24     If this project is approved, then I'm
25     looking for all the positive aspects.
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2     Thank you.
3          MR. SPITZ:  Glen Pontier.
4          MR. PONTIER:  Glen Pontier.  I'm
5     a neighbor of Kittatinny and my
6     property borders their property.  I
7     have a couple of concerns.  I was born
8     in Kingston, which is one end of the
9     D&H canal which ran from Kingston
10     through Port to Honesdale.  So I live
11     along that canal right now which runs
12     right in front of Fimfo so this
13     important.  I lived in Port Jervis.  I
14     worked on the river management plan.
15     Looking at the names of the people
16     that wrote it, I want did I saying
17     this project does not meet the
18     intention of those of us that worked
19     on the river management plan.  Also
20     used to work for Bethel Woods Center
21     for the Arts.  I was researchers that
22     deputy town super.  I have a couple of
23     cover technical things I didn't find
24     eye /TPHAFPT property in the E I S.  I
25     saw a map of the project area, a map
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2     of all the property lines and the
3     neighbors of the property.  I would
4     think that is just basic if you are
5     going a project you would have all the
6     lot lines with the neighbors'
7     property.  I also would have loved to
8     have seen superimposed structures,
9     superimposed on the flood map so we
10     know actually which buildings will be
11     flood zones.  It's not too much to
12     ask.  Four quick points.  There is a
13     big discussion about whether these are
14     permanent or not permanent.  National
15     Park Service says these structures are
16     permanent.  Fimfo says the structures
17     are not permanent.  The solution is
18     just remove them.  Every year just
19     take them out.  Of a flood zone
20     particularly.  If they are not
21     permanent, easy.  I saw things like
22     limiting conditions on the sanitary
23     waste water disposal discussion.  Some
24     of it they are going to just discharge
25     into the ground.  Some of it said they
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2     have limited conditions so they are
3     going to use a shallow trench system.
4     What the hell does that mean?  When
5     they are discharging ground water and
6     it doesn't meet the compliance so now
7     they have some shallow trench system?
8     That's going to need a lot more
9     attention for you guys to look into.
10     They also say there are no plans for
11     expansion at the project site but the
12     project site is not the property
13     owned, that's why they need a map of
14     the property.  So are they going to
15     expand into the property that isn't in
16     the project site?  And if they are
17     not, why don't they research an
18     agreement and say the Delaware
19     Highland conservancy to give up the
20     development rights in the future if
21     the land is not going to be developed.
22     That would calm a lot of people.  So
23     they discussed --
24          (Timer)
25          MR. SPITZ:  Thank you.  Devon
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2     Dyer.
3          MS. DYER:  Good afternoon.  My
4     name is Devon Dyer and I am on the
5     legal team of the Delaware River
6     Keeper Network.  Delaware River
7     Network will submit a full and robust
8     comment explaining why we are
9     authorized and (inaudible) to say no
10     to Camp Fimfo.  This draft DEIS
11     minimizes the projects impact through
12     misrepresentations and intentional
13     omissions that disguise the true grew
14     magnitude of the project.  The draft
15     EIS omits the number of expected
16     yearly visitors by discussing only
17     maximum campground occupancy and fails
18     to disclose that the project will host
19     double the current number of yearly
20     visitors.  It includes elements in its
21     site plans and conceptual plans that
22     are not mentioned anywhere else such a
23     propane lines and additional
24     (inaudible) golf cart parking spaces,
25     a malt shop and forest overlook
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2     (inaudible) mountaintop sites and 285
3     parking spots for river trip guests.
4     The visual renderings of the project
5     are misleading.  They do not depict
6     the expected occupancy or provide a
7     completely view of the campgrounds and
8     may downplay project components by
9     using images entirely different from
10     the components they are meant to
11     render.  The draft EIS includes many
12     inconsistencies such as a variation in
13     the number of proposed number of RV
14     sites, parking spots and employees.
15     It makings no mention of the
16     anticipated cost increases across for
17     campsite reservations that may make
18     the campground too expensive for
19     community members.  It makes no
20     mention of the threats to water
21     quality from chlorine, gasoline or
22     diesel within the flood plain or from
23     the propane lines or from the increase
24     in septic waste water.  It wrongly
25     equates impacts and similar project
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2     features of different size, purposes,
3     resources and intensities and provides
4     no justification for doing so.  It
5     wrongly asserts the project will
6     increase shopping in stores in town by
7     omitting it's own plan to build a
8     store onsite.  And it wrongly
9     characterizes Kittatinny as an RV
10     campground to justify the project
11     without acknowledging 80 percent of
12     the sites are designed for tent
13     camping.  It does (inaudible) traffic
14     impact, but failing to disclose that
15     the original traffic study did not
16     consider the increase expected from
17     the change of allowing non-camper use
18     of the aquatic play area and mini golf
19     area.  It doubled the number of
20     parking spots from its
21     August submission without modifying
22     any of its impact analysis.  Despite
23     the large amount of construction
24     necessarily to implement such
25     unprecedented changes to this site, it
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2     ultimately concludes without reason
3     that no mitigation is required.  This
4     is just an abbreviated list but it
5     makes clear that Camp Fimfo does not
6     comply with New York State
7     Environmental Quality Review Act, the
8     Upper Delaware Scenic & Recreational
9     River Management Plan, the Town of
10     Highland's own municipal ordinances,
11     nor the New York State Constitution
12     and as such you have the authority as
13     well as the justification to say no to
14     Camp Fimfo and the Delaware River
15     Keeper Network urges you to do so.
16     Thank you.
17          MR. SPITZ:  Shaelyn Parker.
18          MS. PARKER:  My name is Shaelyn
19     Parker and I'm speaking on behalf of
20     Green Amendments for the Generations,
21     a national organization.  Our work has
22     helped to secure New Yorkers'
23     constructional rights to clean water
24     and air and to help the environment.
25     It is the planning boards legal
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2     obligation to uphold this right,
3     including by making full, fair and
4     informed decision or projects that
5     impact the environment.  The Camp
6     Fimfo proposal has both a direct
7     threat to the environment and full of
8     mischaracterization, omissions and
9     conflicting information.  One example
10     is applicant using the new maximum
11     occupancy of the campground has a
12     flawed and dishonest argument in an
13     attempt to cover up the actual impacts
14     of the proposed site.  The maximum
15     occupancy alone does not tell us how
16     many people will be at the newly
17     proposed campground at any given time,
18     rather a suspected occupancy is needed
19     to determined this.  This information
20     is not directly provided in the DEIS
21     potentially as way for the applicant
22     to minimize or hide the actual impact
23     of the project proposal.  Using the
24     applicant's own estimation of
25     occupancy rates at the proposed site,
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2     we were able to uncover that there
3     will likely be over 47,000 visitors to
4     the campground each year.  This is
5     more than double the current annual
6     visitors, which is around 20,000 and
7     does net even account for visitors
8     during the weekdays in the summer or
9     individuals day passes.  The applicant
10     withhold that information from the
11     DEIS.  The applicant knows that there
12     will be a huge spike in the number of
13     campground visitors as evidenced by
14     the addition of hundreds of parking
15     spots, thousands of gallons of water
16     and waste water flows, 16 new septic
17     systems, each with an expansion area
18     and double the number of employees.
19     However they are not up front about
20     the tens of thousands of new visitors
21     in the DEIS and instead try to warp
22     the argument into one about decreased
23     maximum occupancy.  This huge increase
24     in visitors will have major impacts
25     including more intense land use,
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2     increased traffic and parking, strain
3     on emergency services, intrusive
4     noise, visual impact, increased carbon
5     emissions, water demand and waste
6     water flows, detracting from the
7     peaceful and natural community
8     character and impacts to just about
9     every other aspect of the area.  None
10     of these are discussed or mitigated in
11     the EIS.  Instead, the applicant
12     appears to intentionally hide this
13     information from the Town of
14     Highland's public and governing bodies
15     in order to accomplish their private,
16     for profit goals, putting both the
17     environment and the town at great risk
18     all for the applicant's own benefit.
19     The planning board must say no to Camp
20     Fimfo, to stop the applicant's lies,
21     protect this cherished part of the
22     Upper Delaware River and uphold the
23     environmental rights of the town
24     residents.  And one more thing I'd
25     like to mention, there is no way the
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2     planning board can uphold full, fair
3     and (inaudible) decision making by
4     limiting speakers to three minutes,
5     not allowing Zoom participants --
6          (Timer).
7          MR. SPITZ:  Christine Martin.
8          MS. MARTIN:  Hello.  Good
9     evening.  Good evening to the brave
10     citizens of the Delaware Valley who
11     have come to share their feelings and
12     thoughts.  Good evening to the Town of
13     Highland planning board and to the
14     visitors who have come from so far
15     away.  Today I am honored to share, my
16     thoughts and feelings about the
17     historic, far reaching issue.  I want
18     to thank the planning board for taking
19     the time needed to get all the facts
20     and for listening to the concerns of
21     the local residents and not for being
22     influenced by outside organizations at
23     county level interests.  This is this
24     truly a landmark moment for the
25     independence autonomy and self
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2     determination of our town.  The Town
3     of Highland planning board is the
4     leading agency on this decision and no
5     one from Monticello or Liberty can
6     take that away.  The corridor is a
7     protected environment and cannot be
8     treated the same as every other
9     tourist attraction.  So if you'll
10     allow me this little moment I'm going
11     to provide a prayer for Fimfo.  Dear
12     Fimfo, we come together as a community
13     united in our love of the Upper
14     Delaware River and its surroundings.
15     We humbly ask for you to join us in
16     prayer for belongingness,
17     environmental stewardship and
18     community responsibility.  May we all
19     recognize our interconnectedness with
20     nature, our collective duty to protect
21     it.  As we stand on the banks of this
22     majestic river, let us remember that
23     we are not separate from the
24     environment, but an integral part of
25     it.  We pray for your awareness for
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2     the delicate balance that exists in
3     our ecosystem.  May your plans reflect
4     a deeper understanding of the
5     potential impacts on water, land and
6     wildlife.  Let us work together to
7     maintain the natural scenic and rural
8     character of this corridor that we all
9     cherish.  We ask for your commitment
10     to sustainable practices that honor
11     the traditional use of this land.  May
12     your project seek to enhance rather
13     than intensify, preserve rather than
14     alter, and respect rather than
15     exploit.  As family and community
16     members we all bear the responsibility
17     of environmental stewardship for
18     future generations.  May you be guided
19     by the wisdom to listen, the humility
20     to learn and the courage to challenge
21     your assumptions.  Let us embrace a
22     sense of belonging that extends not
23     just to people but to the very land
24     that we inhabit.  In closing we ask
25     for the grace to remember that we are
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2     all part of something greater than
3     ourselves.  We're all witness here
4     today.  Thank you very much.
5          MR. SPITZ:  Mike Edison.
6          MR. EDISON:  Thank you.  I' Mike
7     Edison.  I live in Barryville and
8     first I'd like to thank the planning
9     board for their hard work.  Thank you
10     very much.  For years businesses here
11     have tried to elevate the experience
12     of the river corridor and highlight a
13     natural blessing.  The river, trees,
14     nature, all the things that make this
15     area so special, the same reason why
16     we all love living here.  Fimfo wants
17     to chop it down, get rid of
18     traditional camping and build a
19     corporate resort and they have the
20     chutzpah to say fun is more fun
21     outdoors.  I'm going to stay it.
22     Fimfo is just a dumb name and it
23     devalues the experience of --
24          MR. SPITZ:  -- respect please.
25          MR. EDISON:  It's stupid.  They
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2     boast they took 16 tons of trash out
3     of the river since they've been here.
4     What they fail to say is the obvious
5     connection between irresponsible
6     tourism and pollution they are part
7     of.  They plan to build hundreds of
8     small hours and cabins and Fimfo wants
9     you to believe they are temporary RVs.
10     I remember what Andy Boyer said at a
11     planning board meeting last year.
12     Maybe we should get an 8 year old and
13     ask them to count the RVs, then we'll
14     get an honest answer.  We don't need a
15     child.  We all know these are cabins
16     and they are not movable or temporary
17     in any way.  If that's not the case,
18     prove if.  A full scale fire drill.
19     If these are RVs they should be stored
20     offsite during off season.  Otherwise,
21     they are building a housing
22     development.  And please Fimfo explain
23     the threat if you don't build this
24     resort the area will become a
25     worthless religious camp.  As it is,
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2     there is not an adequate chance for
3     the public to view the site and it's
4     impossible for anyone who is not an
5     engineer to really understand them and
6     the website, there are dozens and
7     dozens of pdfs, enormous documents,
8     they are impossible to pars.  And
9     especially in a short period of time
10     across a holiday season so I request
11     the public commentary be extended to
12     120 days and an additional hearing be
13     held.  Not incidentally there are 50
14     letters saying the same thing on the
15     town website.  And for the benefit of
16     the public, make it completely honest
17     and fair, I ask that Fimfo provide a
18     scaled model of this project be put on
19     display for public review.  We need a
20     detailed model that includes but not
21     limited all new construction clearly
22     indicated with flood plains clearly
23     shown, all the toilets, accurate
24     depictions of cabins, including tree
25     clearing (inaudible) water slides and
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2     any areas earmarked for further
3     construction.  The applicant said what
4     you see is what you get, but they
5     continuously change it.  There is
6     ambiguity.  If you have nothing to
7     hide show us in a manner everyone
8     understands.  We all know when money
9     gets involved, the environment is the
10     first thing to go.  And that being
11     said, I think speakers should have to
12     indicate any financial incentive when
13     they make their speeches.  Thank you
14     very, very much for your hard work.
15          MR. SPITZ:  I apologize in
16     advance.  Ayelet Gezow.
17          MS. GEZOW:  A-Y-E-L-E-T, last
18     name GEZOW.  I'm also a little nervous
19     so please forgive me.  I would like to
20     talk about accountability.  How do we
21     get assurance for the long run?  How
22     do we know Fimfo is going to have
23     responsibility for the long term?
24     Here are some suggestions.  Fimfo --
25     one, Fimfo must provide monthly meter
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2     readings of water usage read by a
3     third party.  Any excess use from
4     Fimfo assessment from their EIS should
5     be fined.  Fine should increase the
6     greater the deviation.  Additionally,
7     any neighborhoods well that dries up
8     as a result of Fimfo's water usage
9     should be compensated and a new well
10     be drilled at Fimfo's expense.  Two,
11     river water samples should be
12     collected and tested periodically by a
13     third-party from different spots along
14     the river along Fimfo's property at
15     Fimfo's expense.  Any contamination
16     should elicit a cease and desist
17     immediately.  Three, the lay of plans
18     shows an alarming large propane
19     storage and lines running along the
20     flood plain (inaudible) which is not
21     acceptable to leave that to a
22     contractors good will.  Fimfo should
23     similarly exhibit efforts to ensure
24     that the 16 added septic tanks, septic
25     outflows and chlorinated pool water
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2     disposal do not contaminate the river.
3     Four, Fimfo must provide renderings of
4     adjoining sites and (inaudible) and
5     aquatic centers including all slides
6     and pools and any structures or lots
7     visible from the River's current view
8     should be just juxtaposed on the
9     proposed lot.  For an architect this
10     is standard practice and the only way
11     to understand the scale and extent of
12     the project.  Similarly they should
13     provide a night view showing the dark
14     sky (inaudible).  Five, Fimfo should
15     provide information on the jobs they
16     promised, including full and part-time
17     positions, hourly rate wages and
18     percentage number of people hired
19     locally.  Fimfo should prioritize full
20     time local hires.  The hiring should
21     also be monitored to ensure local work
22     for (inaudible).  Fimfo was 40 years
23     tax abatement while our own taxes keep
24     going up.  How will Fimfo contribute
25     and reduce the strain on the local
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2     infracture --
3          (Timer).
4          MR. SPITZ:  Thank you very much.
5     Last initial B.  Gayle maybe?
6          MS. BROWN:  I don't want to be
7     threatened by anybody so I won't say
8     where I'm from --
9          MR. SPITZ:  Spell your last name.
10          MS. BROWN:  B-R-O-W-N.  Honestly
11     I was ready to pack it up hearing all
12     the people that were supporting this
13     but then I realized, wait a minute,
14     it's their job to support it.  And
15     then also I was thinking, oh, earlier
16     I would hate for it to be like Hudson
17     Valley and I heard somebody from
18     Hudson Valley supporting this and I
19     thought no wonder.  Because they think
20     it's going to turn into that.  So
21     anyway, I am so impressed with all the
22     people who are saying what is wrong
23     with this because (inaudible).  Look
24     at all the camps that have been
25     abandoned.  If you want a Disney Land
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2     why not use one of those areas that
3     are abandoned right now.  People just
4     walked away and what happened to the
5     project (inaudible) caused a disgrace
6     to people living in communities
7     downstream.  One noted factor is 16
8     septic tanks and field proposed.  That
9     one factor should shut down this
10     project which should be criminal.  It
11     doesn't take a genius to figure out
12     it's just a matter before something
13     goes wrong with one or more of time
14     and the Delaware River will be at
15     risk.  And how many of the neighbors
16     wells are going to run dry.  We just
17     got out of a drought.  North Gate can
18     easily (inaudible) but I wonder what
19     they are hiding or what they will try
20     to change once it is approved
21     (inaudible) it's obvious with so many
22     people showing up we don't want this
23     project.  Please stop this madness and
24     realize it's a very bad idea
25     (inaudible) maybe you can come up with
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2     a more feasible project instead of
3     this land disaster.  Maybe something
4     like donating the land so it can
5     become a park and (inaudible).  Thank
6     you for listening.
7          MR. SPITZ:  I want to get back to
8     the point that was mentioned about the
9     letters that we have received so far.
10     The planning board has received 51
11     letters through e-mails and they will
12     be posted as with everything else on
13     our website.
14          Fred Stine, S-T-I-N-E.
15          MR. STINE:  Thank you.  My name
16     is Fred Stine.  I live in South Jersey
17     down in the Cherry Hill area where
18     sprawling suburbs run into one
19     another.  For decades the river and
20     streams down there have been chocked
21     with sewage and sediment from all the
22     development and are only now being
23     nursed back to health after the
24     investment of hundreds of millions of
25     dollars in treatment plants, et
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2     cetera, all at taxpayers expense.
3     That's why I drove three and a half
4     hours to Highland to urge you not to
5     make the same mistakes we've made in
6     South Jersey.  Those mistakes didn't
7     happen overnight, it happened one Camp
8     Fimfo at a time.  In my area we are
9     down to the last remaining farm in
10     Cherry Hill.  It's no more than a
11     tourist attraction so kids can see
12     what a farm looks like.  I'm here to
13     urge you to recognize that if Camp
14     Fimfo is approved it's likely only a
15     matter of time before the next Camp
16     Fimfo project comes long and the next
17     Camp Fimfo comes and you're left with
18     only a small patch of woods to look at
19     to remind future generations what the
20     river valley looks like today.  But to
21     you it may sound ridiculous but that's
22     what farmers once said in South
23     Jersey.  They were men and woman
24     sitting on land use boards just like
25     you are tonight saying it's only one
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2     farm.  We have plenty of farms.  We
3     can use some houses.  Now we have only
4     one novelty farm left.  I come to the
5     Upper Delaware.  I'm a volunteer with
6     the National Park Service and I host,
7     I lead paddling safety on the weekend.
8     I came many times at Kittatinny, many
9     times at Landers (inaudible).  But I
10     also do it with the boy scout troops,
11     my church youth group and my family.
12     We all come up here to the Catskills
13     to truly experience the outdoors and
14     dark skies and pine scent in the air
15     and other elements of being out in
16     nature.  The Poconos used to have a
17     lot more to offer but because of the
18     creeping development down there that's
19     become scarcer and scarcer.  That why
20     I'm here, because Fimfo's proposal,
21     where all of the natural experiences
22     will be diminished if not lost to
23     hundreds of air conditioned indoor
24     oriented RVs to the glitzy water park
25     and miniature golf where there used to
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2     be tent sites and dirt roads.  What
3     Camp Fimfo is proposing is the
4     monetizing your neighborhood, your
5     community to the sort of experience
6     and activities that people can
7     literally find off the New Jersey
8     turnpike in Cherry Hill, New Jersey.
9     I don't believe that is what you feel
10     is in the best interest of your
11     community.  My final point (inaudible)
12     concrete beach.  Let me just remind
13     you, the state has amendment Article
14     1, Section 19 guarantees -- thank you
15     very much.
16          MR. SPITZ:  Thank you.  James --
17     (applause).  Please spell your last
18     name.
19          MR. SKANDARITO:  My name is James
20     (inaudible) I live in Suffolk County
21     Long Island and I am a part-time
22     resident in Liberty.  I've been coming
23     to Sullivan County my whole life.  I
24     started in the Mountaindale area.
25     I've seen the ups and downs of that
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2     area as a retired police officer from
3     Suffolk County and I was in charge of
4     enforcement (inaudible) most
5     environmentally sensitive areas of
6     Long Island and meeting like this are
7     the norm.  This is quite tame,
8     actually.  I'm also a wildlife
9     (inaudible).  I am a quarry operator
10     in Liberty, New York, which I have
11     been for 25 years and (inaudible) New
12     York familiar with these types of
13     procedures that I've had to go through
14     a number of times.  I can tell you
15     they are quite extensive and
16     (inaudible) benefit of the community
17     and everyone involved.  I was one of
18     first projects, I believe, in Sullivan
19     County history to be involved in
20     environmental justice which is
21     balancing the needs of the community,
22     economic development with the needs of
23     moving forward as a business.  And I
24     can tell you I've heard terms hundred
25     year flood, lead agencies, which may
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2     not mean much to anybody in here.
3     What I'm trying say is there has to be
4     some kind of balance as we move
5     forward (inaudible) because there is a
6     need to hear the arguments on both
7     sides so I can just say do your best
8     and trust the process.  I can say that
9     from my experience from going through
10     like I said numerous facets many times
11     over the years having a quarry, these
12     are familiar terms to me and they
13     weren't when I first started but I can
14     tell you that what the planning board
15     is tasked to do, what the DEC is
16     tasked to do, is to hold everybody
17     accountable and to try and trust the
18     process.  I know it's not an easy
19     thing to do but there has to be some
20     balance.  And I came out here,
21     everybody came out in the rain, I
22     didn't think I would see this many
23     people show up.  I hope whatever
24     decision is reached that you take some
25     of this into consideration and
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2     everybody's voice is heard.
3          MR. SPITZ:  Marcella Winograd.
4     Please spell your name.
5          MS. WINOGRAD:  W-I-N-O-G-R-A-D.
6     Hello.  First I want to say thank you
7     for the thoroughness of this processes
8     and the time it's taken.  It just
9     shows that we care about our community
10     and what we want to put in it.  So I
11     was born and raised in the area and
12     I'm an enthusiast of camping, enjoying
13     the outdoors and camping in tents, the
14     fabric tents.  I'm going to keep this
15     short.  We need to support our local
16     businesses, not an out-of-state
17     corporation.  I think we are all
18     really familiar with the term green
19     washing.  They are green washing you.
20     That's it.  Thanks.
21          MR. SPITZ:  S-T-E-I-M-L-E.
22          MR. STEIMLE:  Good afternoon,
23     everybody.  I would like to start off
24     by thanking the planning board for
25     doing a very thorough job and their
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2     tireless efforts and dedication to
3     this project speaks volumes to your
4     support of the community and the
5     economic development that we do and do
6     not push forth in the community.  I
7     would like to start off by saying that
8     I am pro business.  I think that
9     community has been born on business,
10     local business.  In the report they
11     offer, Fimfo offers a combination of
12     194 additional cabins, Airstreams, and
13     park model RVs.  Let's call them what
14     they are.  They are residences.  They
15     are homes.  The American Waterworks
16     Association and the New York State
17     Department of Environment Conservation
18     estimates a per capita waste water
19     generation of 100 gallons.  According
20     to the very article that Fimfo
21     generated for us to review, they
22     estimate that they will have north of
23     2,000 people at any given weekend.
24     With that calculation, that is an
25     estimate of 200,000 gallons of waste
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2     water generation per day on the busy
3     season.  The existing and future
4     design systems that they propose
5     captures a fraction of that.  They
6     proposed 30,000 gallons of waste
7     water, leach and drainage systems.
8     North Gate has constructed a narrative
9     that misinforms you, the public and
10     the supporters into believing these
11     structures are temporary or mobile.
12     Whatever name these structures are
13     given, they're waste generation is
14     exactly the same as a permanent
15     residence.  If this town were
16     considering a 200 home sub
17     development, they would be requiring
18     an advanced waste water treatment
19     system that captures all of it, not
20     some of it.  It is not reasonable for
21     170,000 gallons of waste water to be
22     handles by porta-johns and temporary
23     waste water systems.  We as a
24     community should demand all of the
25     waste water be captured, regulated,
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2     monitored, flow metered and tested.
3     By allowing the progression of the
4     Camp Fimfo project, we are inviting a
5     wolf into the hen house.  The fact
6     that this project has taken longer
7     than the construction of the Tappanzee
8     Bridge proves that this community
9     cares and proves that we don't want
10     it.
11          MR. SPITZ:  (Applause)
12     M-C-G-R-A-T-H, Andy.
13          MR. MCGRATH:  Planning board
14     members, we appreciate you.  You are
15     our neighbors.  We see you around
16     town.  We don't take lightly the
17     decision that you have at hand and we
18     appreciate your diligence through this
19     project, proposal.  One thing I want
20     to say first and foremost for the
21     record that to my knowledge sitting
22     here in front of you all this evening
23     not one person in support of Camp
24     Fimfo is a resident or landowner in
25     the Town of Highland.  I've called
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2     Lumberland my home for the past ten
3     years and for the past three years and
4     I'm a business and landowner in the
5     Town of Highland and I'm here to
6     strongly object to the Camp Fimfo
7     project.  From the limited information
8     that's been provided by North Gate
9     it's clear this project represents
10     blatant overdevelopment of our river
11     corridor and is designed solely to pad
12     the profits of a Michigan-based
13     corporation.  Fimfo has offered no
14     concrete plan or data to show how it
15     will benefit this community, its
16     residents or its businesses.  Why is
17     that?  Because I believe no such plan
18     exists.  The model is clear, isolate
19     their patrons, providing everything to
20     them onsite for a fee from
21     refreshments to firewood while cutting
22     out the small family run businesses
23     that are currently supported by
24     campers and visitors to our area.
25     Fimfo and its corporate owners intend
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2     to exploit the natural beauty
3     (inaudible) and drain our towns
4     resources for their owner gain.  This
5     project has already drained our
6     planning board and if approved will
7     overwhelm our town's regulatory
8     services, emergency management, EMS
9     resources for years to come.  Adding
10     insult to injury, the 40 year tax
11     abatement is nothing short of
12     (inaudible).  And let's not kid
13     ourselves.  This won't be the end.
14     The project moving forward will
15     continue to push zoning boundaries and
16     expanded operations will extract even
17     more from our town while giving back
18     nothing.  Members of the planning
19     board, I urge you reject this
20     reckless, short sighted project, stand
21     with the people who live, work and
22     invest in the community.  Chose
23     responsible, sustainable development
24     that protects our town's future, not a
25     billion dollar corporation with no
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2     stake in our wellbeing.  Thank you
3     very much.
4          MR. SPITZ:  (Applause)
5     F-I-S-C-H-E-R.
6          MS. FISCHER:  Good evening.  My
7     name is Eve Fischer.  I've lived in
8     this area ten years and I own property
9     just two miles from the proposed
10     development.  I strongly object to
11     this project as it currently stands.
12     I urge the planning board to make the
13     right decision by rejecting this
14     proposal and requiring developers to
15     return to plans that align with the
16     river management plan and the town's
17     comprehensive plan.  I implore you not
18     to be influenced by corporate pressure
19     or other interests.  Please prioritize
20     the wellbeing of our community, the
21     residents who call this place home,
22     over the billion dollar corporation.
23     Thank you.
24          MR. SPITZ:  Julius Robinson.
25          MR. ROBINSON:  I'm submitting
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2     this as a public comment.  I broke my
3     glasses.  You can share it among you.
4     I think you can see it.  I guess it's
5     one of these things when you get old.
6     Anyway, my name is Julius Robinson.  I
7     am one of the original members of the
8     Upper Delaware Council Water Resource
9     and Management Committee and I was
10     charged to help draft the river
11     management plan and we've been here a
12     long time.  This is not the same
13     Kittatinny that Frank and Ruth Jones
14     owned.  It's a business and it needs
15     to be treated as a business.  In
16     reading the environmental assessment,
17     a lot of it actually couldn't be
18     answered for one simple reason:  There
19     is no baseline that monitors the
20     current condition of water coming out
21     of Beaver Brook.  Beaver Brook is the
22     outflow of waters from those lands and
23     we all know the (inaudible) landfill.
24     We know what happened at the landfill.
25     And any development needs to be
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2     monitored.  So therefore, and I'm
3     going to read it now as best I can, as
4     a riverfront landowner directly
5     downstream from this project using the
6     clean and free flowing river for
7     recreation for four generations we've
8     used that river half a mile down from
9     Kittatinny for four generations long
10     before Kittatinny was a campground.  I
11     cannot support this development unless
12     there water monitoring is used to
13     control development by providing data
14     on the potential environmental impacts
15     of construction projects.  Allowing
16     authorities to identify areas with
17     sensitive water systems and implement
18     regulations to mitigate pollution,
19     such as requiring specific drainage
20     systems for maintaining irrigation
21     measures to prevent poor quality
22     during construction and post
23     development phases.  Key points about
24     using water quality monitoring is to
25     identify sensitive areas in --
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2          (Timer).
3          MR. SPITZ:  Thank you, Julius.
4     We appreciate it.  Judith Khan?
5          MS. KHAN:  I pass.
6          MR. SPITZ:  Stephanie Porto.
7          MS. PORTO:  My name is Stephanie
8     Porto, P-O-R-T-O. I did not mean to
9     sign up so I'll keep it short.  I am a
10     therapists and social worker working
11     in Sullivan County with children and
12     families.  I do not support this plan
13     as it stands mostly on the basis of
14     all of the things that have been said
15     but I'm going to focus on (inaudible)
16     out-of-state corporation in a county
17     where our resources are already
18     stretched thin.  We desperately need
19     tax dollars for our kids (inaudible)
20     diverse young people out of the
21     justice system and invest in and
22     uplift our community but this deal
23     allows a corporation to profit while
24     contributing next to nothing.  This
25     resort won't (inaudible).
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2          MR. SPITZ:  Travis Weber.
3          MR. WEBER:  Weber, W-E-B-E-R.
4     I'm a resident of Lumberland and I
5     live here full time and I'm opposed to
6     Camp Fimfo.  I'm going to tell you a
7     personal story because I'm the only
8     person in this room that's actually
9     been to New Braunfels, Texas, where
10     Camp Fimfo has their other
11     establishment.  What happened in New
12     Braunfels is incredibly sad.  What
13     brought me to this area is the
14     childhood memory of floating in the
15     Guadalupe River in New Braunfels,
16     Texas, a very special, very magical,
17     very close to nature and those
18     experiences is something that you can
19     no longer get in New Braunfels because
20     of big corporations like this that
21     have turned it into the joke of the
22     town.  What used to be known as
23     historical, very beautiful small town,
24     much like our town here, is no longer
25     there.  And it's really friggin sad
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2     and I don't want to see that happen
3     here.  I love living here.  I love
4     being on the river and I love this
5     small town.  And the people that I
6     meet and the friendships I've been
7     able to develop are because of that
8     and it would really break my heart to
9     see a corporation move in and provide
10     change that nobody else wants.
11     Thanks.
12          MR. SPITZ:  Annie Stanley,
13     S-T-A-N-L-E-Y.
14          MS. STANLEY:  Thank you planning
15     board.  Stanley, S-T-A-N-L-E-Y.  It's
16     a very passionate evening.  A lot of
17     us have been here many times.  If it's
18     true that this is the longest and
19     biggest project approval in Sullivan
20     County, there is an obvious reason
21     why.  It's not in compliance with the
22     river management plan.  This will have
23     a catastrophic environmental impact on
24     quality of life, on the impact of
25     local resident and tourist upstream
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2     and downstream, especially if they
3     expand and buy out all the other
4     campgrounds.  The plans have also
5     changed numerous times thus the
6     delays.  The lengthy review recently
7     saying they will clear 14 acres on the
8     mountain.  Fimfo brags about the 40K
9     people in the river last summer.  I
10     don't know if that's something to brag
11     about and I don't think it's a good
12     idea.  Any of us.  Fimfo brags about
13     500 tons of trash that they retrieved
14     from the river.  I don't think that's
15     something to brag about.  Where is all
16     the trash coming from?  Imagine all
17     the trash and more trash and more
18     trash that will come from Camp Fimfo.
19     Fimfo does not care about the
20     environment.  This project is not
21     sustainable as the county
22     organizations claim it is.  There is
23     no consideration for climate change in
24     scope of the approval.  There should
25     be a moratorium on any large
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2     development until the climate change
3     effects are prioritized in approvals.
4     Let's stop kicking this garbage can
5     down Route 97.
6          MR. SPITZ:  Joseph Krist,
7     K-R-I-S-T.
8          MR. KRIST:  I've got to take care
9     of some clerical stuff.  I apologize
10     if I talk fast.  I've got a lot to say
11     and I've only got three minutes to say
12     it.  My name is Joseph Krist.  I live
13     at 793 State Route 55, that's where
14     everybody throws their garbage when
15     they come on the way back from places
16     like Fimfo.  The case against Camp
17     Fimfo is easy to make merely on the
18     grounds the project is totally
19     inappropriate for the local
20     environment.  That's not my point
21     here.  Instead I want to cite the many
22     ways in which North Gate and
23     associates have indicated what
24     terrible neighbors they would be.
25     They showed a complete disregard for
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2     the location (inaudible).  Their plans
3     for 30 foot sign is beyond
4     insensitive.  The proposed water park
5     is unnecessary.  Just take a look at
6     images of their operation in New
7     Braunfels, Texas and ask if that is
8     what belongs in our precious river
9     corridor.  They don't commit to no
10     community benefits, no aid to the fire
11     district or ambulance corp, support
12     for local schools, prioritizing use of
13     local businesses.  Their own words and
14     actions lead to that (inaudible), not
15     local prejudice.  They rely on and
16     brought in several entities with no
17     relation to the town, the RV Trade
18     group from 200 miles away,
19     out-of-state consultants, employees
20     who may or may not be county
21     residents, and then they try to limit
22     public comments to only those that
23     live within the town of Highland.  If
24     they understood the unique character
25     of the Upper Delaware they would
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2     appreciate the unique responsibility
3     they bear to maintain and not
4     desecrate a national treasure.  And
5     what are we receiving in exchange?
6     Not property taxes, not significant
7     net revenues to the town, not
8     meaningful employment opportunities
9     for the town.  It will not create an
10     asset that can be utilized by the town
11     residents.  If the project does not do
12     these things but instead threatens an
13     environment that is still merging and
14     evolving and finding an increasing
15     number of natural species all the
16     time, the project fails the most
17     minimally acceptability.  It is
18     possible to create environmentally
19     friendly activities, it just doesn't
20     meet the goals of this out-of-state
21     corporation with no real ties to this
22     location.  It's not the job of the
23     board to facilitate their business
24     goals.  Fimfo had plenty of allies in
25     the Sullivan County Partnership and
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2     the (inaudible).  The probably is
3     hotel occupancy taxes, and sales taxes
4     may benefit the county, but they do
5     not directly benefit the town's
6     residents.  The partnership and the
7     IBA made their position very clear and
8     that position essentially tells us to
9     suck it up for the benefit of the
10     county.  I would simply ask Mr. Baez
11     of the county how he would like to
12     live next to this project.  There are
13     many risks when North Gate chose to
14     buy the Kittatinny campground and part
15     of our (inaudible) no one asked North
16     Gate to come here.  It's clear that
17     they misunderstood the nature of this
18     unique community and they knew that
19     the project would be very
20     controversial.  The potential
21     environmental damage that would be
22     done at their failed project in
23     Massachusetts pales in comparison to
24     what could happen here.  We also
25     cannot ignore the complete disrespect

Page 87

Veritext Legal Solutions
212-279-9424 www.veritext.com 212-490-3430



1                 PROCEEDINGS
2     this community has received,
3     especially from the Fimfo team.
4     They're famed inability to understand
5     what they are being asked for and
6     their continued insistence that the
7     proposed structures are not permanent
8     is belied by their failure to refute
9     descriptions of the permanent nature
10     of the structures?
11          (Timer.)
12          MR. SPITZ:  Thank you, Joseph.
13     Clark, I'm not sure of the first name.
14          MR. CLARK:  Herb Clark, without
15     an E. I'm not here as an employee of
16     one largest associations in the
17     county, I'm here as a 26-year resident
18     of Sullivan County.  I've seen this
19     river on its good days and its bad
20     days.  I've seen families like
21     Flanders and Jones go in there and
22     clean things up after a hundred year
23     floods and I feel that Fimfo can be a
24     good partner if we all work together
25     so I support Camp Fimfo.  Thank you.
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2          MR. SPITZ:  Faith Zerbe,
3     Z-E-R-B-E.
4          MS. ZERBE:  Good evening.  Thank
5     you for holding this meeting.  I want
6     to say a couple of things and I'm not
7     too organized because I haven't had
8     time in two weeks to really look
9     through things.  We appreciate you
10     having this meeting but it would be
11     really important to ensure that it
12     goes into January for others that are
13     not here because of the holidays and
14     other things happening with their
15     families.  So please consider allowing
16     more public ample time so that we can
17     continue the process that you are
18     deliberating and to make sure that we
19     do protect the river.  So I do not
20     live here in New York.  I have a farm
21     in (inaudible) but I spent most of my
22     time in Upper Darby in one of the most
23     concentrated populations.  For over 25
24     years I've come up to this beautiful,
25     incredible place that you've all
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2     worked so incredibly hard to protect
3     until now.  And as I come up through
4     the different areas outside of the
5     water gap and outside of this
6     beautiful scenic wild river, you see
7     many resorts right along the way.  We
8     have Fernwood Resort which I think now
9     burned down it's no longer a resort.
10     We have a little water park and
11     innertubes literally in the storm
12     water basin outside of the water gap,
13     right, you have Kalahari, the Leheigh
14     Valley area, right now lots is
15     happening with (inaudible) getting
16     paved over with ponzi schemes like
17     this Fimfo operation.  We do not need
18     our children and our blood pressure
19     and our health to be incorporated into
20     little box that we come from those
21     places with pollution, storm water --
22     many people mention storm water issues
23     is a death by a thousand cuts.  You've
24     done such a great job and now, even
25     now, you're doing a good job.  Please,

Page 90

Veritext Legal Solutions
212-279-9424 www.veritext.com 212-490-3430



1                 PROCEEDINGS
2     please don't throw this away.  This
3     river is an incredible place and keeps
4     everybody rejuvenated, they get
5     together and look at nature, look at
6     the eagles, listen to the water.  I
7     have spent a lot of time volunteering
8     with the National Park Service on
9     safety patrol on the upper part of the
10     river.  I've brought countless people
11     to the river to enjoy the sight of
12     eagles and other places, all these
13     incredible places that still exist
14     because of your deliberation.  So
15     please do not allow this green washing
16     to happen.  And we will be doing more
17     review of this EIS but we need so much
18     to protect this beautiful place.
19     Couple points, light pollution, huge.
20     Beaver Brook, really a great pristine
21     area.  Close to 14 acres of forest to
22     be decimated.  The flood plain --
23          (Timer.)
24          MR. SPITZ:  Thank you very much.
25     David Jones.

Page 91

Veritext Legal Solutions
212-279-9424 www.veritext.com 212-490-3430



1                 PROCEEDINGS
2          MR. JONES:  David Jones.  120
3     Kittatinny Court, Dingman's Ferry,
4     Pennsylvania.  I've heard a lot about
5     the river today from a lot of people
6     that seem to care but you know
7     something?  There isn't a person in
8     this room that cares more about this
9     river and this campground than myself
10     because I built most of Kittatinny
11     campground personally.  When I was
12     young teenager I started working ing
13     there.  I'm 70 years old today.  I
14     know that place better than anybody in
15     this room, any engineer.  I've put my
16     life's work into this campground.  It
17     was time for me to retire and time for
18     me to sell to somebody who's going to
19     take damn good care of it or I
20     wouldn't have sold it to North Gate
21     Resorts and Sun Communities.
22     Everybody is concerned about
23     pollution.  Tents?  They want tents
24     when you camp in a tent and you've got
25     to take a leak in the middle of the
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2     night, are going to walk 500 feet to a
3     porta-john, or are you going to piss
4     in the damn creek.  Are you going to
5     take a dump in the woods instead of a
6     porta-john?  That's what a lot of
7     people do when they are drunk.  And
8     that's the clientele that really does
9     the polluting.  Or they dig a trench
10     around the tent because they learned
11     that's the right thing to do.  In a
12     thunderstorm that sediment is going
13     right in the river.  This is going to
14     protect, not only Beaver Brook, but
15     the Delaware.  This is needed.  People
16     don't want to camp in tents like they
17     used to.  The new trend are RVs. If
18     people bring their RVs, talk about
19     pollution and traffic, you really want
20     RVs going up and down 97, or do you
21     want a beautiful RV cabin where it's
22     already set up where they use the
23     restroom right into the cabin, it goes
24     into a septic system that state of the
25     art, unlike the old systems in
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2     Kittatinny.  This is upgrade.  I'm
3     really disappointed in North Gate
4     Resorts.  I'm very upset with them.  I
5     don't know what the hell they are
6     thinking.  I used to put 80,000 people
7     in that place.  What is this 30,000
8     crap.  You guys are loosing a lot of
9     money.  Does anybody realize it's free
10     enterprise and capitalism is what
11     built America.  Is this still America?
12     I was a corporation.  I didn't live in
13     the Town of Highland, I lived in
14     Pennsylvania.  Does that make me bad?
15     Was I a bad person because I didn't
16     live in the Town of Highland.  I hear
17     people talking about property lines.
18     There is a gentleman here, I'm not
19     going to mention names, he went on my
20     property to cut trees on my land so he
21     could see the river.  There is a guy
22     who put his foundation rubble on my
23     property because he didn't want it on
24     his.  There's a guy here that built a
25     house, not only within the setback but

Page 94

Veritext Legal Solutions
212-279-9424 www.veritext.com 212-490-3430



1                 PROCEEDINGS
2     on DOT property --
3          (Timer.)
4          MR. SPITZ:  Thank you.  Wade.
5          MR. WADE:  Wade, W-A-D-E.  I came
6     here this evening because I didn't
7     know what Fimfo is really all about
8     even though it's been going on for a
9     while, but I do know that Sullivan
10     County is one of the poorest counties
11     in New York State and one of the
12     sickest.  And I do know that water is
13     pretty damn important.  It's life.  I
14     see a lot of signs big on fracking.
15     We used to live outside of
16     Philadelphia and I'd stand on Penn's
17     Landing and look out and there's no
18     way I would drink that water or swim
19     is that water.  We've been coming to
20     Highland Lake now since I'm married,
21     now 37 years, full time 18 years, and
22     it's a small town, everyone has to
23     contribute, so when I came up here I
24     joined the fire department.  I was in
25     the fire department for 13 years, I
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2     dropped out two years ago, because I
3     got burned now when there is a call
4     you respond whatever time day or night
5     but because there are so few
6     volunteers in Lumberland, Highland,
7     even across the river in Shohola,
8     everything is mutual lane so what used
9     to be 50 calls is now 150 calls and a
10     lot of times you want to enjoy the
11     time with your family on holidays when
12     all these people are coming up from
13     the city to enjoy the river, which is
14     their prerogative, but on the Delaware
15     every year we lose a number of people
16     and local lakes and you know these
17     young guys they're partying, they're
18     drinking alcohol, they've got their
19     hormones going, they think they can
20     swim across, well they can't.  They
21     drown.  Then they call volunteers to
22     come search for them and pull them out
23     spending hours and hours looking for
24     people.  They are usually not locals,
25     they are out of towners who don't know
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2     the power of the river and the river
3     up here, even though it's much smaller
4     than the Delaware River down in
5     Philadelphia, it's still a mighty
6     force and we want to keep it clean and
7     as a volunteer with the fire
8     department and the ambulance crew, you
9     know, when there is a call hours and
10     hours of their time, they are donating
11     and to my knowledge Kittatinny before
12     or Fimfo in the future, if it comes to
13     be, are not contributing to the
14     manpower or expenses incurred by our
15     local companies.  And I really didn't
16     know much about it but the first ten
17     people that came up here are all hired
18     guns.  They don't live here.  I live
19     up the road, three miles up the road,
20     and I care what happens in this
21     community.  Dogs don't shit in their
22     own kennel, but I think some of these
23     people, they don't care what happens
24     down in the lower part of the county.
25     Maybe they live in the upper part of
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2     Sullivan, but what happens down here
3     is not going to affect them.  And I've
4     got concerns.
5          MR. SPITZ:  Menege -- I'm sorry?
6     Is there anybody else that hasn't
7     signed up, that hasn't spoken that
8     wishes to -- just the one?  Please
9     come up and state your name.
10          MR. BURGART:  Good evening,
11     everyone.  My name is Thomas Burgart.
12     JT and I went to high school together
13     right here in this town.  I am a
14     former employee of Fimfo.  I can tell
15     you I visited both properties and I've
16     toured both properties and asked the
17     management to tour the property and
18     asked for information and they were
19     freely given (inaudible) witness the
20     deterioration over the last 30 years
21     since 1994 in this county and in this
22     town what I do not see is anyone else
23     bidding on the property.  Nobody else
24     wanted it.  As far as I'm concerned I
25     think they've done a great job and are
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2     being truthful.  What we cannot see is
3     the future and people talking about
4     taxes.  Yes, everybody gets tax
5     breaks, you know --
6          MR. SPITZ:  This is not open for
7     debate or discussion.
8          MR. BURGART:  I'll concede
9     because these people can't be
10     respectful.
11          MR. SPITZ:  Is there anybody else
12     that hasn't spoken that wishes to
13     speak?  Okay.
14          First and foremost I really do
15     appreciate everybody's respect and
16     comments and the feelings and the
17     energy that you have give on either
18     side.  Please note that as planning
19     board we have listened to what you
20     have to say, we will absolutely take
21     that into consideration as we move
22     forward through this process and as we
23     gather the information that was
24     presented tonight and continue through
25     this SEQR process.
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2          So with no more public comments I
3     will make a motion to go ahead and
4     close the public hearing.  JT makes
5     the motion.  Seconded by Tim.  All in
6     favor?
7          PARTICIPANTS:  Aye.
8          MR. SPITZ:  Any opposed?
9     Abstain?  The public hearing is closed
10     and again as a reminder to everybody
11     and certainly everybody that spoke, it
12     is very helpful, we have the
13     information through the recording and
14     through the stenographer but we also
15     encourage you to please send your
16     comments again to the
17     planningboardzba@townofhighlandny.com
18     e-mail.  We will pull together all of
19     the comments that were received
20     tonight.  It goes to Camp Fimfo.  They
21     will go ahead and comment on that.
22     They will put together their official
23     response to everything that's said
24     that is directly related to the
25     environmental impact study.  And
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2     again, once they do that we will
3     prepare our notice of completion, we
4     will publish it, post it, we will get
5     it to the UDC and National Park
6     Service who will also prepare their
7     written SEQR finding statement at
8     which point we will go ahead and
9     render our decision.  So we are still
10     a bit aways from any decisions.  Our
11     process for the last three or so years
12     has been very transparent and any
13     questions can be directed to the
14     e-mail address and we will absolutely
15     review that and exact accordingly.
16     Again, comments are received until
17     January 10th for written comments.  I
18     thank everybody so much for coming.
19     We do appreciate your time.  Happy
20     holidays to everybody.  Thank you so
21     much.  And can I get a motion to close
22     the meeting.  Tim makes the motion,
23     Frank seconds it, all in favor?
24     Meeting is closed.
25          (Time noted:  7:54 p.m.)
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2                 CERTIFICATE
3
4 STATE OF NEW YORK )

                  :  SS.:
5 COUNTY OF ORANGE  )
6
7     I, SANDRA NOEL BARTELS, a Notary
8 Public for and within the State of New
9 York, do hereby certify:
10     That the testimony as herein set
11 forth, was duly sworn by me; and that the
12 within transcript is a true record of the
13 testimony given.
14     I further certify that I am not
15 related to any of the parties to this
16 action by blood or marriage, and that I am
17 in no way interested in the outcome of
18 this matter.
19     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto
20 set my hand this 3rd day of January 2025.
21
22

             <%4154,Signature%>
23                 SANDRA NOEL BARTELS
24             *     *     *
25
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